HOUSE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 12, 2007
1:45 P. M

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Meyer called the House Finance Conmittee neeting to
order at 1:45:04 PM

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
Representative Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Representative Bill Stoltze, Vice-Chair
Representative Harry Crawford
Representati ve Ri chard Foster
Representative Les Gara

Representati ve M ke Hawker
Representative Mke Kelly
Representative Mary Nel son
Representative Bill Thomas Jr.

MEMBERS ABSENT

Representati ve Reggi e Joul e

ALSO PRESENT

Representati ve Jay Ranr as; Bar bar a Cotti ng, Staff,
Representative Jay Ranras; Doug Letch, Staff, Senator Gary
Stevens; Patrick Ganble, President & CEO Al aska Railroad
Corporation; Mrk Johnson, Chair, Regulatory Conm ssion of
Al aska; Lisa Parker, Governnent Relations Manager, Agrium
David Scott, Staff, Representative Kyle Johansen

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Ri chard Gazaway, Hearing Exam ner, Regul atory Comm ssion of
Al aska, Anchorage; Duane Bannock, D rector, D vision of
Mot or Vehicles, Departnment of Admnistration, Anchorage;
Chri st opher Const ant , Vi ce Chair, Al aska  Statehood
Cel ebration Conm ssion, Anchorage; Bill O Leary, Vice
President, Finance, Al aska Railroad Corporation, Anchorage;
Scott Hamann, Kenai; Jeff MIIls, Kenai

SUMVARY

HB 28 An Act requiring retail suppliers of electricity
to disclose sources of electricity to consuners.

HB 28 was HEARD & HELD in Conmmittee for further
consi derati on.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 1 04/ 12/ 07 1:45 P. M



#HB152
HB 152 An Act establishing a renewable energy fund and
describing its uses and purposes.

HB 152 was SCHEDULED but NOT HEARD.

HB 229 An Act authorizing the Al aska Railroad Corporation
to participate in a project consisting of the

acqui sition, constructi on, i mpr ovenent,
mai nt enance, equipping, or operation of real and
per sonal property, including facilities and

equi pnent, for the Kenai gasification project,
authorizing the corporation to issue bonds to
finance all or a portion of the project, and
identifying these as bonds for an essential public
and governnental purpose; and providing for an
effective date.

HB 229 was HEARD & HELD in Commttee for further
consi derati on.

CS SB 49(STA) An Act relating to commenorative |icense
pl ates cel ebrating Al aska's 50th anniversary as a
state; and providing for an effective date.

HCS CS SB 49 (TRA) was reported out of Committee
with a “do pass” recomendation and with fiscal
note #2 by the Departnent of Adm nistration

1:46: 01 PM
#HB28
HOUSE BI LL NO 28

An Act requiring retail suppliers of electricity to
di scl ose sources of electricity to consumers.

REPRESENTATI VE JAY RAMRAS, SPONSOR, stated that there is a
need for nore public awareness of fuels used by electricity
sold to Al askan consuners. Many of Alaska' s electricity
providers are wusing innovative alternative nethods for
generating electricity or buying power from conpanies that
do. |f residents statew de becone nore aware of it, they
could in turn beconme nore aware of the need to conserve
decreasing supply of traditional fuels. HB 28 requires al
retail suppliers of electricity in Aaska to annually
di scl ose fuel sources to all consuners, raising awareness of
how power is generated and the existence of alternatives to
fossil fuels. The sinple once-a-year report would also help
explain increases in costs per kwhr and help answer
consunmers questions.

1: 49: 59 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 04/ 12/ 07 1:45 P. M



Vice Chair Stoltze asked if it was possible to find out the
cost per kilowatt hour (kw hr). He wanted to guarantee that
the State would not be buying into something nore expensive
than currently used. Representative Ranras expl ai ned that
the idea is that regular citizens would be offered an
opportunity to wunderstand the kilowatt costs that they
personal |y use. He added that Al askan citizens should
address alternative energy and that HB 28 provides a “nodest
step” toward that direction

Vice Chair Stoltze worried that it was an expensive deci sion
made for utilities; he hoped to see the bill nade better.
Representative Ranras replied he woul d support any action to
make it better; he only wanted to see discussion begin
regarding portfolio of kilowatt costs.

1: 54: 14 PM

Vice Chair Stoltze noted that the utility that represents
his area is a custonmer within a larger utility. As the bil
is witten, who assunes the responsibility for nmailing the
insert. Representative Ranras requested that the Regul atory
Comm ssion of Al aska would be better qualified to respond to
that query. He added that the expense burden would not be
exor bi tant.

Vice Chair Stoltze inquired if wnd generation maintenance
costs could be quantified. Representative Ranras responded
that the bill addresses only existing used kilowatt hours.
He |isted the four sources of kilowatts:

. Coal
. Nat ural gas
. Fuel oi
. Hydr o
The only intention of the bill is to create a dialogue

regarding current kw hr <costs & the sources of those
kilowatts.

1: 58: 02 PM

Vice Chair Stoltze inquired how to sequester & achieve a
consumer preference. Representative Ranras stated he wanted
to see nore & cheap enerqgy.

1: 59: 22 PM

Representative Gara commented on anending |anguage, which
could provide information to the consuners. Representative
Ranras recommended that consideration be discussed with the
RCA.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 04/ 12/ 07 1:45 P. M



Representative Gara noted the main concerns with renewable
ener gy:

. Power source

. Level of green house enmissions going into the
at nosphere

Representative Gara asked if the sources of the power were a
fair estimate of how nuch carbon dioxide cones from those
sour ces. He inquired if the sponsor was anenable to
including that information. Representative Ranras offered
to consider it in 2008.

Representative Gara hoped to add reasonabl e | anguage to the
proposed bill. Representative Ranras noted it was the first
time the idea had cone forward; he preferred to handle
projects increnentally. He was not interested in adding the
| anguage as it brings an elenment of “science” to the bill.

2: 02: 45 PM

Representative Gara stated that he wanted to work on
responsi bl e I anguage to |let people know the kinds of green
house emi ssions occurring fromtheir power sources.

2:03:19 PM

RI CHARD GAZAWAY, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), HEARI NG
EXAM NER, REGULATORY COWM SSION  OF ALASKA, ANCHORAGE
offered to answer questions of the Commttee.

Vice Chair Stoltze asked about the relationship with his
consumner utilities.

2: 05: 02 PM

Representative Ranras explained that there had been
testimony in the House Labor and Commerce Conmittee
regarding Vice Chair Stoltze's concern. The utilities were
amenable to providing the “stuffers”; they do not see it as
an additional cost.

2:06: 38 PM

Representative Nelson questioned which utilities had been
cont act ed. Representative Ranras stated that the smaller
utilities were contacted. He asked that RCA testify

regardi ng the size be excused.
Representati ve Nel son pointed out that the source of utility

in rural Al aska was diesel energy and did not inmagine they
woul d need “stuffers”. The conpanies do not offer annual

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 04/ 12/ 07 1:45 P. M



reports. Representative Ranras guaranteed that the
| egi slation would not be a burden to the small conmmunities.

2:08: 09 PM

Co-Chair Chenault asked for a list of which utilities would
be affected. Representative Ranras explained it was
addressed through exclusion of the small power generating
utilities — there is no list. There has been a lot of

di scussion on the dollar anmunt separating the smaller from
the larger utilities.

Co-Chair Chenault inquired if single-source utilities would
be exenpt. Representative Ranras responded that the
| egislation goes wth the dollar anmount of how many
kilowatts are generated, which abides by RCA dialogue, in
t he House Labor & Commerce Committee.

Co-Chair Chenault noted that Juneau was fully hydro and that
for them to inplenent the program there would be a snal
cost passed to the consuners, which he thought was be a
wast e. Representati ve Ranras agreed, however, pointed out
that it could be a way to bring information to consuner’s
attention.

2:11: 48 PM

Represent ati ve Hawker voiced confusion regarding disclosure
of source and cost, pointing out that the bill only requires
source discl osure.

Representative Nel son pointed out |anguage on Page 2, Line
23, indicating an electric utility that does not gross $500

t housand annually, may elect to be exenpt. Representati ve
Hawker advi sed that the follow ng | anguage: “Provision other
than”, would change that. Representati ve Ranras requested

an anendnent to address that correction, the intentionis to
exclude small utilities.

2:13:49 PM

Representative Gara pointed out that $500 thousand dollars
annually amounted to approximately 250 customners. He
worried how that would affect small & rural areas.

Representative Ranras indicated the nunber was determ ned
during discussion in the House Labor and Commerce Conmmitt ee.

2:14:55 PM

MARK JOHNSQN, CHAI R, REGULATORY COWMM SSI ON OF ALASKA (RCA),
ANCHORAGE, clarified that the $500 thousand dollar anount is
the anmobunt in current law and it is not anended by the
proposed | egi sl ation. He recommended a threshold could be
further discussed.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 04/ 12/ 07 1:45 P. M



Representative Gara encouraged that it be applied to
utilities that serve at least a 1,000 consuners or nore
Representative Ranras |liked that idea for big utilities &
encouraged whatever |anguage change needs to happen to
tighten it up

Co-Chair Meyer asked Representative Hawker to consider a
conceptual anendnment addressing the issue. Representati ve
Hawker recommended tabling the bill.

2:17: 09 PM

PUBLI C TESTI MONY CLOSED

2:17: 20 PM

Vice Chair Stoltze inquired about the obligations providing
for consunmers. M. Johnson pointed out that current wording
places an obligation to conduct rule-making in order to
conduct things such as exenptions on the Regulatory
Conmi ssi on of Al aska.

Vice Chair Stoltze referenced his comunity utility
newsl etter and asked if that would be a good place to insert
the information. He thought the goal was to have little or
no costs passed on to the consuners.

2:20: 26 PM

Co-Chair Meyer noted that the bill needs work, and he
recommended that a couple conceptual anmendnents be witten
and then consi der ed.

HB 28 was HELD in Commttee for further consideration.
2:21: 05 PM

#SB49
CS FOR SENATE BILL NO. 49(STA)

An  Act relating to commenorative license plates
celebrating Al aska's 50th anniversary as a state; and
providing for an effective date.

DOUG LETCH, STAFF, SENATOR GARY STEVENS, explained that in
2009, Alaska will celebrate its 50" anniversary as the 49"
State. To mark the occasion, the 23 Legislature created
the Al aska Statehood Celebration Commi ssion to organize,
plan and adm nister all official State activities |eading up
to the anniversary. The Comm ssion has recommended that the
State issue a conmmenorative |icense plate.

SB 49 provides the Division of Mtor Vehicles (DW)
statutory authority to issue a special license plate

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 04/ 12/ 07 1:45 P. M



commenorating the anniversary. The Division has determ ned
the design and color of the plate. DW wll begin to issue
the plate on January 1, 2008.

M. Letch noted that SB 49 was anended by the House
Transportation Commttee to allow DW to issue special
registration plates to recipients of the Medal of Honor.
The bill also waives any registration or plate fees for the
person receiving the Medal of Honor and renoves the $30
dollars fee for Purple Heart recipients. He urged support.

2:24: 30 PM

Vice Chair Stoltze asked about the title change. M. Letch
replied that the title was changed as a result of action
taken in the House Transportation Comm ttee.

Representative Thomas inquired if the plates could be
purchased w thout wusing them on a vehicle. M. Letch
t hought that was an option & that they would be available
for collectors.

2:25:45 PM

DUANE BANNOCK, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), DI RECTOR,
DI VI SI ON OF MOTOR VEHI CLES (DW) , DEPARTNMENT OF
ADM NI STRATI ON, ANCHORAGE, testified in support of the bill,
adding that the plates could be purchased as replacenent
pl ates or as a sanple plate available for collectors.

2:27:15 PM

CHRI STOPHER CONSTANT, (TESTIFIED VI A TELECONFERENCE), VICE
CHAI R, ALASKA STATEHOOD CELEBRATI ON COWM SSI ON, ANCHORAGE
noted that the Comm ssion had worked on the plates for the

past couple years and wurged that the bill pass from
Conmi ttee.
2:28:34 PM
Representative Thomas commented that a bill previously
passed the “metal of honor” plate & thought a free |icense
plate would be a nice action for that group. He added

encouragenent to provide the license to those famlies.

Co-Chair Meyer pointed out the fiscal revenue loss in the
amount of $2,000 dol | ars.

2:30:18 PM

DAVI D SCOTT, STAFF, REPRESENTATIVE KYLE JOHANSEN, expl ained
that |anguage added during the House Transportation
Conmittee did create a Metal of Honor license plate and

woul d waive the license plate and registration fee for the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 04/ 12/ 07 1:45 P. M



Metal of Honor recipients as well as deletes the $30 doll ar
fee for Purple Heart recipients.

2:31: 06 PM

Representati ve Foster MOVED to REPORT HCS CS SB 49 (TRA) out
of Conmmttee with individual recomendations and with the
acconpanying fiscal note. There being NO OBJECTION, it was
so ordered.

HCS CS SB 49 (TRA) was reported out of Conmttee with a “do
pass” recomendation and wth fiscal note #2 by the
Depart ment of Adm nistration.

2:31: 50 PM
#HB229
HOUSE BI LL NO 229

An Act authorizing the Al aska Railroad Corporation to
participate in a project consisting of the acquisition,
construction, inprovenent, maintenance, equipping, or
operation of real and personal property, including
facilities and equipnent, for the Kenai gasification
project, authorizing the corporation to issue bonds to
finance all or a portion of the project, and
identifying these as bonds for an essential public and
governnental purpose; and providing for an effective
dat e.

REPRESENTATI VE M KE CHENAULT, SPONSOR, noted that Agrium
US., Inc. currently owms and operates an ammonia and urea
complex in Kenai, which is in danger of being permanently
shut down due to a lack of adequate natural gas feedstock

Such a closing would have a harnful effect on the State
through loss of jobs and tax base. The Agrium Kenai

Gasification Project (the Project) addresses the issue by
bringing coal from Healy to Kenai where |ow em ssion coa

gasification and electricity generation plants would be
constructed, allowing Agrium to continue to operate the
fertilizer plants at optimal capacity.

Co-Chair Chenault pointed out that HB 29 authorizes the
Al aska Railroad Corporation (ARRC) to issue up to $2.6
billion dollars in tax-exenpt bonds to finance a portion of
t he Project which includes:

. Facilities & equipnent for the transportation of
coal fromHealy to Kenai; and
. Facilities & equipnent for <coal gasification &

el ectrical power generation adjacent to the Agrium
fertilizer plant |ocated in Kenai.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 04/ 12/ 07 1:45 P. M



Lower-cost debt for the Project would enhance the Project’s
economi cs, increasing the feasibility. Paynment of debt
service allocable to facilities and equi pnent that woul d not
be owned by ARRC would be provided through a long-term
contract or other agreenent between ARRC and the Project’s
owner or operator. Paynment of debt services for rolling
st ock, | oconoti ves, track, facilities and ot her
infrastructure owned by ARRC would be paid for by ARRC
f unds. Per AS 42.40.690, in no event would the general
credit of the State be pledged for the repaynent of the
bonds.

Co-Chair Chenault continued, ARRC is wuniquely suited to
participate in the Project by virtue of its ability to issue
t ax- exenpt debt as authorized by the federal Al aska Railroad

Transfer Act. A viable Project could nean significant
increnental revenues to ARRC through novenment of up to an
additional 3 mllion netric tons of coal annually. The

Project would also generate conpatibly priced surplus
electricity for the regional power grid, generate excess
carbon dioxide that could be used to enhance oil recovery
fromthe wells in Cook Inlet and continue to supply Al aska
busi ness & organi zations with fertilizer.

ARRC would have the flexibility to issue the bonds in a
single issuance or in several issuances. The ARRC Board of
Directors would be required to approve each bond i ssuance.

2: 36: 57 PM

PATRI CK GAMBLE, PRESI DENT & CEQ, ALASKA RAI LROAD
CORPORATI ON, ANCHORAGE, advi sed that ARRC has never sold tax
free bonds before. This would be a conduit financing with

no liability or recourse to the State. It is a tool
provided to the ARRC transfer that is unique to the U S. tax
code. It contains provisions reviewed by nore than one | aw

firm to determne the applicability of certain attributes
that in the 1986 tax code had been | eft unedited, suggesting
that the intent of Congress was straightforward in the way
that the tool could be used as econom c devel opnent for the
State of Al aska. The mssion of AARC is economc
devel opnent . ARRC sees the opportunity with Agrium as the
first time to put it to work for the benefit of the State &
as such, ARRC would becone the conduit financers. ARRC is
i nvol ved operationally in the noving of coal. Part of the
$2.6 billion dollar request wuld be the purchase of
addi ti onal equi pnrent to support the project.

2:39: 53 PM

LI SA PARKER, GOVERNVENT RELATI ONS MANAGER, AGRIUM U. S

INC., reiterated that Agrium is conmtted to the Kenai
facility in keeping it operational. The current gas
contracts will expire in Cctober 2007. She noted that they

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 04/ 12/ 07 1:45 P. M



are in negotiation for additional supply. She discussed the
declining supplies of natural gas in the Cook Inlet area.
If the decision is nade to continue working on the issue, it
is estimated the project would conme on line in five to siXx
years, but wll need additional natural gas contracts to
keep the project on line in the nean tine.

2:43: 04 PM

Co-Chair Meyer clarified that the anount of bondi ng woul d be
approximately $2.6 billion dollars. M. Ganble observed
that there would probably be nore than one bond rel ease. He
reiterated that the State will not be at risk.

Representative Crawford spoke in support of the |egislation,
whi | e aski ng about assurance during the process with regard
to mtigating issues & cost factors.

2:45: 25 PM

Ms. Parker explained that Agrium had nmet with environnental
firms being considered to address permtting. Wth regard
to the CO2 and coal dust are the issues to be addressed
during the permtting process. Agriumis also in discussion
with the Port of Anchorage and the Railroad. N kiski plant
woul d have covered storage for the coal. The CO2 is used
for making urea; Agriumis conmtted into | ooking at ways of
capturing unused CC2. The Departnent of Energy has
identified about 300 mllion barrels of oil that could be
recovered in the Cook Inlet. If it can not be used for
enhanced oil recovery, there are other nethods to capture
the CO2. Excess CO2 will be addressed during phase 2(b).

Representative Crawford asked when the State woul d know t hat
an assurance had been net. Ms. Parker observed that
permtting requires enclosed facilities.

2:49: 56 PM

Vice Chair Stoltze asked the dollar anpbunt for the
i mprovenents. M. Ganble replied that $2 billion would go
to Agrium and $600 nmillion to the Railroad, including
contingency and inflation for the capital costs.

Vice Chair Stoltze questioned if the proposed |ocation was
t he best choice. M. Ganble responded that timng is an
issue. As a preferred site, the ability to guarantee that
Agrium and the Alaska Railroad are ready to operate is the
i ssue. He added that additional spurs could be prepared for
i npl enent ati on.

2:53: 09 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 04/ 12/ 07 1:45 P. M



Vice Chair Stoltze noted, the proposed statute addresses
specifically the route. He thought that the planning
process could be averted if it did not go through Anchorage.

Co-Chair Chenault asked if there were reasons that it would
not be advantageous to the Railroad, to look at both

opti ons. M. Ganble explained that wuld not have
signi ficance on the bonding side or the ability to nove the
coal . The significant inpact would be for Agriums

devel opment plan. Wth the nost certainty, the better the
mar ket takes the risk & pre-approved is nost advantageous.
Any doubts regarding a spur to Port MKenzie would have an
i npact on bonds and ti m ng.

2:58: 03 PM

Ms. Parker added that putting together the business plan

there is an existing coal mne at Healy & it is known that
there is a Railroad that can deliver product to the Port of
Anchorage. Point MKenzie has open space and does not have

a spur line or an environnental i npact  statenent.
Additionally, they do not know how a spur line would be
financed. It is better to nove forward on certainty than to

specul ate on what m ght happen and when it m ght occur.

2:59: 30 PM

Vice Chair Stoltze pointed out the uncertainty operating
t hrough downt own Anchorage. M. Ganble replied that to work
with the Agrium project, Port MKenzie would have to be
ready to nove in the above nentioned timefrane.

3:01: 01 PM

Representative Gara summarized his concerns. He worried
that the intent was to sequester the carbon em ssions
under gr ound. Coal produces twi ce as nuch carbon eni ssions
t han natural gas. He asked for further assurance that the
majority of the em ssions would be contained, pointing out
that there is nothing in the RCA rules that allows sanctions
based on the em ssions.

Ms. Parker responded that based on the engineering of the
project, the difference for current and projected CO2 is an
i ncrease of about 10 percent. Agrium is committed to
m ni m zing and sequestering the CO2 em ssions. She pointed
out that Agrium has a track record; there exists a simlar
situation in a small Agriumfacility in Texas and they sell
t he sequestered CQO2.

Representative Gara indicated that if the Legislature
provi des the bonding now, they would have no control over
what happens in Phase 2. He knew that Agrium was between a
“rock and a hard place”. He comented on the nunber of

House Fi nance Conmmittee 11 04/ 12/ 07 1:45 P. M



vari abl es, however, stressed the inportance of addressing
t he excess carbon em ssions. M. Parker noted that over the
past 5 years, there has been a decline to the industry and a
| oss of jobs and that the only way to restore those jobs is
to nove ahead with the project. The hope is to have no CO2
em ssi ons.

3:07: 06 PM

Representative Gara asked if Agrium would support | anguage
addressing that intent. Ms. Parker could not commt unti
the drafted | anguage was before the corporation.

3:08: 03 PM

Represent ati ve Hawker questioned the advantage to Agriumto
use the Railroad for financing as opposed to the comerci al
mar ket .

Bl LL O LEARY, (TESTIFIED VIA  TELECONFERENCE), CH EF
FI NANCI AL OFFI CER, ALASKA RAI LROAD CORPORATI ON, ANCHORACGE

stated that tax exenpt financing bonds through the Al aska
Railroad Corporation would have a significant inpact &
benefit, dependant on the market conditions at the tine.

Representative Hawker asked if the essential governnent
purpose test nust be net [for Dbonding]. M. O Leary
observed that the transfer |anguage included provisions
regardi ng tax exenpt debt, which appear to exenpt the Al aska
Rai l road Corporation from the federal tax rules. He felt
that the Agrium project would fit into that category,
resulting in a federal exenption

3:11: 39 PM

Representative Hawker inquired which exenption that would
fit wunder. M. OLeary noted that rules regarding tax
exenpt debt were changed in 1996 with the rewite of the tax
code, curtailing the use of industrial devel opnent bonds.
Limts on the anmpbunt of bonds issued for private activity
uses were added. M. O Leary stated he has worked wth a
nunber of bonding conpanies, reiterating that the project
woul d be tax exenpt debt.

3:12: 57 PM

Representative Hawker referenced Section 4, putting a
requirenent on the State that the bonds issued would be an
essential government purpose. He asked if that would be a
conflict in intent. M. O Leary did not think so, stating
that the nore strength to the argunent taken to the Interna
Revenue Service (IRS), the better it would be. Supporting
the project using the Railroad’ s tax exenpt debt furthers
the benefit to the project and ARRC.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 12 04/ 12/ 07 1:45 P. M



Representative Hawker advised that productive assets would
be acquired for Agrium with the $2 billion dollar funding
amount and the Alaska Railroad Corporation receiving $600
mllion dollars.

Representative Hawker stipulated that the bill provides
conduit authority. He asked if the State of Al aska woul d be
conpensated for that benefit to the conpany. M. O Leary
stressed that the public benefit would be generated through
the Kenai by support of the continuance and operation of a
| arge enmployer in that area. The coal access would have a
significant benefit to the Railroad and the Railroad then
returns benefits to the State. ARRC woul d be conpensated
for hauling the coal fromHealy. A fee could be negotiated
for the use of the bonding with Agrium M. O Leary did not
t hi nk | anguage regarding a fee needed to be added to the
bill, but rather would be part of the negotiation between
the Al aska Railroad and Agriumin the fee structure.

Ms. Parker added that Agrium would not object to assurance
that a fee would be paid for the issuance of the bonds

M. Ganble pointed to |anguage on Page 3, Line 21, relating
to fees, noting that additional |anguage could be added to
address Representative Hawker’'s concern. Representative
Hawker did not see the State receiving any conpensation
other than a reinbursenent to the Railroad. M. Ganble
acknow edged that Ianguage could be adjusted in that
Secti on.

3:20: 04 PM

Representative Hawker referred to the argunent that
conpensation to the State wuld be the increased
conpensation to ARRC, again benefiting the State. He

guestioned if the magnitude of the transaction would nove
the Railroad toward solvency, providing a dividend to the
State of Al aska. M. Ganble stated that revenue earned by
the Railroad should remain with the Railroad. The federa

law clearly indicates that. However, there cones a tine
wi thin devel opnent and within the law that there needs to be
a way discussed to address projects within the State that
have a Railroad purpose and that the State would intend to
fund such projects within the Departnent of Transportation &
Public Facilities wthout violating the Transfer Act.

3:22:43 PM

Representative Hawker asked if the intent would be to enter
the market as a conpetitive or negotiated bond sell. M.
O Leary clarified that different conditions wuld be
revi ewed, but he envisioned a negotiated sell.

3:24: 55 PM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 04/ 12/ 07 1:45 P. M



In response to a question by Vice Chair Stoltze, M. Ganble
explained that federal I|law was reviewed and |anguage
tightened to clarify what was neant in the Transfer Act.

Representative Kelly questioned the amount of risk assuned
by the Railroad. M. Ganble responded that there would be a
risk assessnent in determning the interest rates, which
amounts to the full faith and credit of Agrium s whol eness.
The Railroad’'s faith and credit as a conduit financer would
be at risk, but they would not be responsible in a default
situation.

In response to a question by Representative Kelly, M.
Ganble reiterated that the nature of the Railroad allows
them to bond, since they do not fall under the State cap.

ARRC will have to neet the IRS test for this. When
considering the provisions in the relationship with Agrium
the key phrase is “for Railroad purposes”; that is
i mportant. If it proves successful, then the tool can be

used for econom c devel opnent.

3:29:57 PM

Representative Kelly asked how |arge a conpany Agrium is.
Ms. Parker replied that Agrium sales in 2006 were $4.2
billion dollars; in the proposed project, Agrium would
assune ot her partners.

Representative Kelly noted for the record, previ ous
di scussion regarding non-statutory pollution requirenents.
He stated that Alaska has stringent federal and State
requi rements regarding pollution controls. He did not see
anything inposed upon Agrium that is not by statute or by
| aw requi red.

3:31: 51 PM

Representative Kelly asked about the economics of the
proj ect . Ms. Parker responded that Agrium is close to
getting a business plan together, naking their decision by
July 2007. If the funds are not |lined up, the project wll

be dropped. If it does not work with the Railroad to issue
the tax free bonds, Agriumw || | ook at other options.
3:33:43 PM

Representative Gara revisited the emssions isSsue. He
advised that coal burns “dirty” conpared to natural gas.
Al aska is a high producing carbon dioxide state, listed as

#13 in the Nation. He questioned about re-injecting carbon
di oxi de and the portion of left over em ssions. M. Parker
recalled that about 42% of the CO2 was used in the urea

House Fi nance Conmmittee 14 04/ 12/ 07 1:45 P. M



process, but she offered to clarify the nunber & get back to
Representative Gara.

Representative Gara renenbered that coal produces twi ce as
much CO2 as the natural gas. He asked if the re-injection
part would result in sonmething conparable to a natural gas
plant. M. Parker replied that based on current technol ogy,
t he use of coal today has changed drastically. Depending on
the use of excess CO2, Agrium would hope to have |ess CO2
em ssions than currently generat ed.

Representative Kelly pointed out that the State is running
out of gas in the Cook Inlet; he wanted to guarantee that
the coal industry would be able to build a power plant. He
stressed that the Al aska coal is |ow sul phur

3:37:26 PM

Representative Hawker said he was supportive of the bill
pointing out that it does provide for financing. He
requested that the State Debt Manager from the Departnent of
Revenue be present to respond to questioning on the entire
proposal, providing professional counsel on what would be a
commercially reasonable fee structure for a significant
econonm ¢ advantage to a corporate enterprise. Co- Chair
Meyer agreed.

Representative Kelly pointed out that anything with a
significant capital expansion often requires paynent up
front. He asked if sonething bad happened, would the
Rai |l road assune the $600 million dollars.

3:39:52 PM

M. O Leary responded that there are two conmponents of the
| egislation. Agrium would be responsible for the debt and
that there would be no-recourse to the Al aska Railroad; the
other piece is in regard to the assets owned by ARRC and
that the Al aska Railroad would be responsible for repaynent
of debt to those assets. AARC would be responsible for
facility and infrastructure and any financing related to the
assets & debt repaynents.

3:41: 58 PM

SCOTT  HAMANN, (TESTIFIED VIA TELECONFERENCE), KENAI ,
testified in support of the bill. He thought it would be a
Wi n-win opportunity for the entire Kenai Peninsula and
ultimately, the entire State of Alaska by providing great
infrastructure. He urged support of the |egislation.

JEFF M LLS, (TESTIFIED VI A TELECONFERENCE), KENAI, testified

in support of the bill. He noted that it would help nove
energy and feed stock down the Kenai Peninsula in order to

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 04/ 12/ 07 1:45 P. M



expand the energy base. He also voiced support for the Port
MacKenzi e option. He noted concern that AARC woul d serve as
the conduit for Agrium He proposed an alternative
scenari o, where AARC and Agrium work together to build a gas
plant to provide feed stock for a variety of industries,
sunmari zing that if the State is going to spend $2 billion
dollars, it should support a variety of industries.

3:45:11 PM

PUBLI C TESTI MONY CLOSED

HB 229 was HELD in Commttee for further consideration.
#

ADJ OURNVENT

The neeting was adjourned at 3:45 P. M

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 04/ 12/ 07 1:45 P. M



